
 

 

Agenda 
 
 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Monday, 13 March 2023 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

 
Date Tuesday, 21 March 2023 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, Northallerton, 

DL6 2UU 
 

 
Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 

 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

N A Knapton (Chairman) 
P Atkin 
P Bardon 
D B Elders (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Mrs B S Fortune 
K G Hardisty 
R W Hudson 
 

 
Other Members of the Council for information  
 
Note: Members of the press and public are also able to observe the meeting virtually via 
Teams.  Please click on the link on the website or dial 020 3855 5195 followed by the 
Conference ID: 129 168 69#  For further information please contact Democratic Services on 
telephone 01609 767015 or email committeeservices@hambleton.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
 
  Page No 

 
1.  Minutes  

 
 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2023 
(AGS.17 to AGS.18), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3.  Head of Internal Audit Opinion and Counter Fraud Update 2022/23  
 

1 - 22 

 Report of the Chief Executive 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

4.  Annual Governance Statement 2022/23  
 

23 - 40 

 Report of the Chief Executive 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

5.  Audit Planning Report for 2020/21  
 

41 - 84 

 Report of the Chief Executive 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

6.  Matters of Urgency  
 

 

 Any other business of which not less than 24 hours prior notice, 
preferably in writing, has been given to the Chief Executive and which 
the Chairman decides is urgent. 
 

 

 



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
 
Date: 21 March 2023 
 
From: Chief Executive 
 
Subject: Head of Internal Audit Opinion and Counter Fraud 
 update 2022/23 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 Under the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, it is a statutory requirement for 

councils to have effective internal audit that complies with public sector internal 
audit standards.  
 

1.2 Regulation 11 of the Local Government (Structural Changes) (Further Transitional 
and Supplementary Provision and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 
2009/276 provides that each district council must, in accordance with Regulation 6 
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, prepare and approve an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) prior to the Local Government reorganisation date.  

 
1.3 In accordance with paragraph 5.1 of the Council’s Audit Charter, ‘The Head of 

Internal Audit is required to provide an annual report to the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee. The report will be used by the Committee to inform its 
consideration of the Council’s annual governance statement.’  
 

1.4 The Annual Head of internal Audit report (included at annex 1) summarises the 
outcomes of audit work undertaken in 2022/23. The report provides an opinion on 
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s framework of governance, 
risk management and control. A report setting out counter fraud activity and 
performance is also included at annex 2. 

 
2.0 The Report 
 
2.1 The results of completed audit work have been reported to relevant officers during 

the year. Appendix A in annex 1 provides details of the completed work. Appendix B 
contains further details on the audits finalised since the last report to this committee 
in January 2023. 

 
2.2 The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the framework of governance, 

risk management and control operating within the Council is that it provides 
Substantial Assurance.  No reliance was placed on the work of other assurance 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



bodies in reaching this opinion and there are no significant control weaknesses 
which, in the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit, need to be considered for 
inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
2.3 An overview of the work undertaken by the counter fraud team is provided in annex 

2. A range of work has been completed in 2023/23 which has included investigation 
of potential criminality, raising awareness of fraud reporting mechanisms for staff 
and members of the public, and preparing for Local Government reorganisation in 
North Yorkshire.  

 
2.4 Investigative work by the counter fraud team has helped the Council to achieve 

£42.7k of savings. Warning have been issued to five people who incorrectly 
obtained money or discounts from the Council. 

 
3.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
3.1 The work of internal audit supports the Council’s overall aims and priorities by 

promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the Council to 
become a more effective organisation. 

 
4.0 Risk Assessment 
 
4.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
5.0 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
6.0 Legal Implications 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
7.0 Equalities and Diversity Issues 
 
7.1 Equality and Diversity issues have been considered. There are no issues 

associated with this report.  
 

8.0 Recommendation      
 
8.1 Members of the Committee are asked to  

 
a) Note the results of the audit and counter fraud work undertaken in 2022/23 

 
b) Accept the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the framework of governance, 

risk management and control operating within the Council 
 
 
Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 

Page 2



Background papers: None  
 
Author ref: SC/DC 
 
Contacts: Stuart Cutts, Assistant Director – Audit Assurance 
 The Veritau Group 
 stuart.cutts@veritau.co.uk 
 
 Daniel Clubb, Assistant Director – Counter Fraud 
 The Veritau Group 
 daniel.clubb@veritau.co.uk 
 

Page 3

mailto:stuart.cutts@veritau.co.uk
mailto:daniel.clubb@veritau.co.uk


 
  

ANNUAL HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

21 March 2023 
 
 
 
Annex 1 

Page 4



2 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Appendix A 
Internal audit work in 2022/23 

Appendix B 
Summary of key issues from work finalised since the last 
report to the committee 

Backgroun
 

Follow up of 
agreed actions 

Internal audit 
work carried out 

Professional 
standards 

4 4 

5 6 

8 

9 

Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit 7 

Appendix C 
Audit opinions and priorities for actions 15 

Page 5



3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Max Thomas 
Head of Internal Audit 

Stuart Cutts 
Assistant Director – Audit Assurance 

Page 6



4 

 

 BACKGROUND 
 

1 The work of internal audit is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) and the Council’s audit charter. These require the Head 
of Internal Audit to bring an annual report to the Audit Committee. The 
report must include an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control. The 
report should also include: 

(a) any qualifications to the opinion, together with the reasons for those 
qualifications (including any impairment to independence or 
objectivity) 

(b) any particular control weakness judged to be relevant to the 
preparation of the annual governance statement 

(c) a summary of work undertaken to support the opinion including any 
reliance placed on the work of other assurance bodies 

(d) an overall summary of internal audit performance and the results of 
the internal audit service’s quality assurance and improvement 
programme, including a statement on conformance with the PSIAS. 

2 Regulation 11 of the Local Government (Structural Changes) (Further 
Transitional and Supplementary Provision and Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2009/276 provides that each district council must, in 
accordance with Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, 
prepare and approve an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) prior to the 
Local Government reorganisation date.  

3 Internal audit’s opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control are a key source of 
assurance in preparing the AGS and the reason why the annual report of 
the Head of Internal Audit is being presented to this meeting. 

 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK CARRIED OUT IN 2022/23 

4 The financial year 2022/23 has been a year dominated by preparations for 
local government reorganisation (LGR). This was anticipated at the 
beginning of the year when the internal audit work programme was 
presented to this committee in March 2022. 

5 The approach to internal audit delivery has been significantly different to 
previous years. This was intentional and designed to ensure that we could 
provide support but also assurance in areas of most importance from a risk 
or priority perspective, while recognising the demands on officers due to 
LGR. This has required, in some instances, careful programming and 
planning to deliver financial systems work and, in others, a need to be 
flexible and responsive, and picking up and pausing audit work in response 
to pressures facing service areas. 

Page 7



5 

 

6 In addition to internal audit work undertaken directly for Hambleton District 
Council, Veritau has supported all eight councils involved in the transition to 
North Yorkshire Council through its attendance at, and contributions to, a 
number of LGR workstreams, and associated activities throughout 2022/23. 
A portion of our time this year has been spent providing direct support and 
advice in respect of these evolving arrangements. 

7 Senior managers at Hambleton District Council have continued to support 
delivery of internal audit work during 2022/23. Work has been prioritised 
based on risk and the need to provide coverage of the Council’s framework 
of governance, risk management and control. However, particular emphasis 
has been given to providing assurance on the continued effective operation 
of the Council’s key financial systems amidst the changes and pressures 
brought about by LGR.  

8 The results of completed audit work are reported to the relevant managers, 
the s151 officer and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. A 
summary of the internal audit work undertaken during the year is contained 
in appendix A. All but one piece of planned work has, at the time of writing 
this report, been completed to final report stage.  

9 We been able to deliver a body of internal audit work during the year which 
has, overall, resulted in good coverage of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. 

10 Appendix B provides details of the key findings from internal audit 
assignments completed, that we have not previously reported to the 
committee.  

11 Appendix C sets out our current definitions for each assurance level and the 
priorities for management action. 

 
 FOLLOW UP OF AGREED ACTIONS 

 
12 It is important that agreed actions are followed up to ensure they have 

been implemented. Veritau has followed up agreed actions during the year 
taking account of the timescales previously agreed with management for 
implementation.  

13 Our work shows that generally, good progress has been made by 
management during the year to address relevant previously identified 
control weaknesses. There are no significant weaknesses to report to the 
Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



6 

 

 

 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 
 
14 In order to comply with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) the 

Head of Internal Audit is required to develop and maintain an ongoing 
quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP). The objective of 
the QAIP is to ensure that working practices continue to conform to 
professional standards. The results of the QAIP are reported to the 
committee each year as part of the annual report. The QAIP consists of 
various elements, including: 

• maintenance of a detailed audit procedures manual and standard 
operating practices 

• ongoing performance monitoring of internal audit activity 

• regular customer feedback 

• training plans and associated training and development activities 

• periodic self-assessments of internal audit working practices (to 
evaluate conformance to the standards) 

15 External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by 
a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The most recent external assessment of Veritau internal audit 
working practices was undertaken in November 20181. This concluded that 
Veritau internal audit activity generally conforms to the PSIAS2. 

16 The outcome of the last QAIP (reported to this committee in July 2022) 
demonstrated that the service continued to conform to the PSIAS. The 
results of the self-assessment and QAIP for 2022/23 are not yet complete 
but will be available for review after April 2023. The full QAIP will be 
presented to a meeting of the Audit Committee of the new North Yorkshire 
Council in 2023/24.  

17 The Internal Audit Charter sets out how internal audit at the Council will be 
provided in accordance with the PSIAS. The Charter was last reviewed in 
January 2022 when an updated charter was approved by this committee. 
No further amendments are required, and the existing Internal Audit 
Charter will continue to guide and govern the performance of Veritau’s 
internal audit work for the Council up until 31 March 2023.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Reported to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in January 2019 
2 PSIAS guidance suggests a scale of three ratings, ‘generally conforms, ‘partially conforms’ and 
‘does not conform’. ‘Generally conforms’ is the top rating. 

Page 9



7 

 

 OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

18 The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the framework of 
governance, risk management and control operating at the Council is that it 
provides Substantial Assurance. No reliance was placed on the work of 
other assurance providers in reaching this opinion, and there are no 
significant control weaknesses which, in the opinion of the Head of Internal 
Audit, need to be considered for inclusion in the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
19 The opinion given is based on work that has been undertaken directly by 

internal audit, and on the cumulative knowledge gained through our 
ongoing liaison with officers. However, in giving the opinion, we would note 
that preparations for local government reorganisation (LGR) have, over the 
last year, required a significant investment of time, effort and resources 
across the organisation. This has put strain on the Council’s control 
environment and its business operations. The Council has had to operate 
during periods of uncertainty and substantial change all while maintaining 
service delivery and other key support functions. The unique circumstances 
and uncertainty brought about by the LGR transition have combined to 
create a very challenging operating environment. While the work of internal 
audit is directed to the areas that are considered most at risk, or to provide 
most value for the Council, it is not possible to conclude on the full extent 
of the LGR transition on the Council’s operations. 

 

 

 
 

 
  
  

Page 10



8 

 

APPENDIX A: 2022/23 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 
 
Final reports issued 

Audit Reported to 
Committee Assurance Level 

Creditors March 2023 Substantial Assurance 

Payroll migration March 2023 Substantial Assurance 

ICT disaster recovery March 2023 Substantial Assurance 

Environmental health – follow up March 2023 No opinion (follow up)  

Risk management March 2023 No opinion (baseline 
review for opinion) 

Housing Benefits March 2023 Substantial Assurance 
Sundry Debtors and Debt 
Recovery March 2023 Substantial Assurance 

Crematorium governance January 2023 Substantial Assurance 

General Ledger January 2023 Reasonable Assurance 

Revenues and benefits September 2022 Substantial Assurance 

Payroll and employee overtime September 2022 Reasonable Assurance 
Sundry Debtors and Debt 
Recovery July 2022 Reasonable Assurance 

Risk Management July 2022 Substantial Assurance 

Cyber Risk Management July 2022 Substantial Assurance 

Creditors July 2022 Substantial Assurance 

Public Sector Decarbonisation July 2022 No opinion  
(project risk review) 

 
Audits in progress (as at 9 March 2023) 

Audit Status 

Business Rates and Council Tax Work in progress 3 
 
 
Other work completed in 2022/23 
Internal audit work has been undertaken in a range of other areas during the 
year, including those listed below.  

• Certification of the Homelessness Prevention Grant, Local Authority Test and 
Trace Support Payments, and Contain Management Outbreak Fund return.  

• Regular discussion with management, including ongoing discussions linked 
to local government reorganisation. 

• Ongoing review of key documentation and meetings/minutes to help inform 
our future work and provide assurance/insight for our 2022/23 opinion.  

 
3 A verbal update on this work will be provided to members at the committee meeting.  

Page 11



9 

 

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES FROM AUDITS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO 
THE COMMITTEE 

 
System/area Opinion Area reviewed Date 

issued 
Comments Management actions 

agreed 

Creditors Substantial 
Assurance 

We reviewed the creditor 
payments system to ensure: 
• payments were made for 

goods and services that had 
been appropriately ordered 
and received 

• duplicate payments were 
prevented 

• changes to the contact 
details and bank accounts of 
suppliers were altered in 
accordance with Council 
procedures and guidelines. 

• invoices were paid in a 
timely manner 

February 
2023 

Council payment controls were working 
effectively. All payments reviewed were 
appropriate, for goods and services 
correctly ordered and received.  

Testing of all payments confirmed no 
duplicate payments had been made. There 
were also no instances where payments 
were made before the date on the invoice.  

Changes to supplier bank account details 
were being checked and authorised 
following Council procedures.   

Approximately 9 out of every 10 invoices 
with an associated purchase order were 
paid within 30 days between January 
2022 and January 2023.  

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

Payroll 
Migration 

Substantial 
Assurance 

The ResourceLink HR and 
Payroll system is used at North 
Yorkshire County Council and 
was selected as the payroll 
system to be used by the new 
North Yorkshire Council.  

Hambleton was the first 
authority to migrate payroll 
data to ResourceLink and the 
‘go-live’ date was 1 October 
2022.  

The purpose of the audit was to 
provide assurance to 
management that procedures 
and controls ensured that: 

February 
2023  

Governance arrangements were robust.  

A clear migration project plan was in place 
and supported the management of the 
project. A Payroll Board was established 
and there was regular communication 
between relevant parties. Three parallel 
runs were performed before the payroll 
was solely run through ResourceLink in 
October 2022.   

We used our data analytics software to 
analyse data from Hambleton’s ITrent 
payroll system, and ResourceLink. We 
found no issues. Where there were 
differences in the number or nature of 

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

P
age 12



10 

 

System/area Opinion Area reviewed Date 
issued 

Comments Management actions 
agreed 

• governance arrangements 
around the migration were 
robust.  

• migrated payroll data was 
accurate.  

• Key controls within the 
ResourceLink system 
operated to ensure payroll 
data remained accurate.  

employee records held on the two 
systems, these were able to be explained.  

Key controls, such as exception reporting, 
are in place within the ResourceLink 
system. The payroll team at HDC are also 
still involved in checking for discrepancies 
each month.  

ICT Disaster 
Recovery 

Substantial 
Assurance 

In 2022 existing back up 
servers were decommissioned 
by the Council and replaced 
with a cloud based solution.  

The purpose of this audit was to 
provide assurance to 
management that procedures 
and controls within the system 
will ensure that: 
• There are robust disaster 

recovery plans in place 
• Backups are taken in line 

with the Council’s 
requirements and are 
validated. 

• Disaster recovery plans are 
tested and action is taken to 
address lessons learned. 

February 
2023  

The Council have a disaster recovery plan 
in place that sets out how they will restore 
the network from full and partial network 
outages. The disaster recovery plan is 
stored in several accessible and secure 
locations.  

The Council replicates its data in real time. 
This means that a failure of servers would 
result in minimal data loss. Snapshots of 
the data is sent to the Council’s servers, 
stored within Amazon’s data centres.  

The Council have backups that are taken 
on a daily basis. Backups are monitored to 
ensure they have been successfully taken. 
A copy of the backups is stored in a 
secure location and is supported by 
several appropriate security controls to 
help ensure these backups cannot be 
compromised.  

Since the Council moved to a cloud-based 
disaster recover solution in Summer 2022, 
tests have been carried out to restore 
components of the network and individual 

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

P
age 13



11 

 

System/area Opinion Area reviewed Date 
issued 

Comments Management actions 
agreed 

systems. A full disaster recovery test was 
carried out in November 2022. This test 
was largely successful with issues that 
arose analysed and assessed to prevent 
them from recurring. 

Environmental 
Health 

No opinion 
(follow up of 
previous 
weaknesses) 

Internal Audit work in May 2018 
highlighted issues with 
Environmental Health 
performance reporting, system 
upgrades and patches, and 
terms of reference/user group 
participation. The work 
concluded there were a number 
of improvements that could be 
made.  

The Council took the decision to 
replace the IDOX system with 
the Civica Cx system which 
went live in March 2022.  

This audit considered the extent 
to which the new system and 
associated processes have 
addressed the weaknesses 
found in 2018. 

February 
2023  

All applicable issues from the 2018 report 
have been satisfactorily addressed. 

Since the implementation of the Cx 
system in March 2022 performance 
monitoring, system updates and statutory 
reporting have been vastly improved. The 
new system allows for easier interrogation 
and more informed performance 
management and monitoring.  

The system is updated at regular intervals 
and communication is in place between 
the Environmental Health Team and the 
team at Civica. A User Group and forum 
has been established where best practice 
and updates are shared and discussed.   

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

Risk 
Management 

No opinion 
(baseline 
review for 
internal 
audit 
opinion)  

This work focused on a review 
of risk management activity in 
2022/23 to provide assurance 
for our annual internal audit 
opinion, that the Council has 
continued to maintain control 
over risk management 
arrangements and prepare for 

February 
2023  

Risk management arrangements 
continued to operate during 2022/23. 
Corporate and service level risk registers 
continued to be reviewed, updated and 
reported in line with established 
procedures. 
Procedures were in place to help ensure 
the Council could identify, assess and 

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

P
age 14



12 

 

System/area Opinion Area reviewed Date 
issued 

Comments Management actions 
agreed 

the upcoming LGR related 
organisational changes.   

manage risks. Risks related to upcoming 
changes related to LGR have been 
considered and we saw evidence of risks 
related to this upcoming change being 
incorporated into current risk registers. 
The upcoming changes as a result of LGR 
will mean systems at the existing 
authorities will be combined into a single 
central system. Risk management 
arrangements for the new North Yorkshire 
Authority are currently being developed 
by a LGR strategic risk management 
group.  

Housing 
Benefits 

 

Substantial 
Assurance 

Previous internal audit reports 
covering the housing benefits 
service area (July 2019 and July 
2022) found a strong control 
environment in place.  

The purpose of this audit was to 
review key Housing Benefits 
information to assess the 
quality of arrangements being 
operated in 2022/23.   

 

March 
2023  

We found no new risks relating to the 
quality of arrangements being operated 
during 2022/23.  

New claims processing speeds were within 
the 20-day target that is set across all 
North Yorkshire local authorities and the 
local 4 day target for processing change in 
circumstances.  

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) were 
produced and monitored on a regular 
basis. The service generally performed 
well and clear explanations were provided 
on each indicator for performance levels.    

Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) 
data on performance in 2022 raised no 
issues.  

No complaints were upheld specifically 
relating to housing benefits.  

No areas requiring 
management actions 
were identified.  

P
age 15



13 

 

System/area Opinion Area reviewed Date 
issued 

Comments Management actions 
agreed 

External Audit reviews of the housing 
benefit subsidy claim form for the last two 
years found only minor issues which had 
no impact on the overall subsidy.   

Sundry debtors 
and debt 
recovery 

Substantial 
Assurance 

We reviewed key controls 
within the sundry debtors and 
debt recovery systems to 
ensure that:  
• invoices were requested and 

raised accurately and in a 
timely manner 

• outstanding debt was 
actively pursued and correct 
procedures followed 

• income was appropriately 
reconciled 

• debt write-off procedures 
were being followed. 

March 
2023 

Invoices were requested and raised 
accurately, in a timely manner, and 
included all necessary information.  

All reminder letters reviewed were issued 
in line with Council guidance.  

Daily reconciliations were being performed 
between the cash receipting system and 
the general ledger. No issues were noted 
with those we tested.  

Our work on outstanding debt noted some 
outstanding debt that had not been 
reviewed in the last year. This is not 
unexpected given the sundry debtors 
team has, in recent years, had many extra 
demands placed upon them; more 
recently (after the Covid-19 pandemic, 
including processing Business Grants), 
Local Government Reorganisation, and the 
additional fuel payment support.  

Whilst sampling showed some debts are 
being left to age, action has been taken 
by officers to collect outstanding debt. 
Outstanding debt also decreased from 
£306,234 in June 2022 to £236,428 in 
December 2022. Officers have prioritised 
the available resources, for example 
working on larger debts.   

2 Priority 3 actions 
were agreed 

A review of small/older 
debts will be 
undertaken, and action 
taken to write-off where 
appropriate, before 31st 
March 2023 and the 
transition to the new 
Authority.  

It is planned that the 
new authority will 
implement new 
processes by 31st 
December 2023, to 
ensure debts are 
reviewed on a regular 
basis, regular reporting 
is provided to 
Management and 
appropriate 
recovery/write-off 
action taken where 
appropriate. 

 

 

P
age 16



14 

 

APPENDIX C: AUDIT OPINIONS AND PRIORITIES FOR ACTIONS 
Audit opinions 

Our work is based on using a variety of audit techniques to test the operation of systems. This may include sampling and 
data analysis of wider populations. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion relates only to the 
objectives set out in the audit scope and is based on risks related to those objectives that we identify at the time of the 
audit. Our overall audit opinion is based on 4 grades of opinion, as set out below. 
Opinion Assessment of internal control 
Substantial 
assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating 
effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

Reasonable 
assurance  

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, 
non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited.  

Limited assurance 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the 
system of governance, risk management and control, to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited.  

No assurance 
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. 
The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to 
the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

*There are circumstances when it is not appropriate to give an opinion/assurance level on completed work, for example on project and 
other support, consultancy, grant certification and follow up work. When ‘no opinion’ is our conclusion this is not to be confused with a 
no assurance opinion.  

 

Priorities for actions 
Priority 1 A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires 

urgent attention by management 

Priority 2 A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs 
to be addressed by management. 

Priority 3 The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management. 

P
age 17



 

 

  

COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT 2022/23 

 

Annex 2 

Date: 21 March 2023 

Page 18



2 
 

 

 BACKGROUND 

1 Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. The government estimates 
that the taxpayer loses up to £51.8 billion to fraud and error in public 
spending every year1. Financial loss due to fraud can reduce a council’s 
ability to support public services and cause reputational damage.  

2 Veritau delivers a corporate fraud service to the council which aims to 
prevent, detect and deter fraud and related criminality. We employ 
qualified criminal investigators to support departments with fraud 
prevention, proactively identify issues through data matching exercises, 
and investigate any suspected fraud. To deter fraud, offenders face a range 
of outcomes, including prosecution in the most serious cases. 

3 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on counter fraud 
activity in 2022/23. 

 

 FRAUD MANAGEMENT 

4 Veritau undertakes a range of non-investigative activity to support the 
development of counter fraud arrangements at the council. Preparation for 
Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in North Yorkshire has been a 
focus for Veritau in 2022/23. The counter fraud team has worked with all 
councils to ensure that strong counter fraud policies and procedures are in 
place when the new authority forms. An e-learning package designed to 
prepare staff for the threat of fraud was released in September 2022 and 
has been completed by key finance employees. 

5 Raising awareness of fraud issues within the council is an important part of 
the work of the counter fraud team. In June 2022, Veritau raised 
awareness of whistleblowing and highlighted the importance of the role of 
managers in the process. In October, warnings about the latest methods 
and tactics used by cyber criminals were communicated to officers as part 
of Cybersecurity Awareness Month. During International Fraud Awareness 
Week in November, messaging to staff reinforced how to report concerns to 
the fraud team. In December we highlighted the importance of the council’s 
anti-bribery and anti-money laundering policies. 

6 To help the council meet obligations under the Local Government 
Transparency Code 2015, Veritau provided transparency data on counter 
fraud work completed in 2021/22. This information is published on the 
council’s website. 

 

 

 

 
1 Fraud and Error (Ninth Report of Session 2021/22), Public Accounts Committee, House 
of Commons 

Page 19



3 
 

 

 MULTI-AGENCY WORK 

7 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a large-scale data matching exercise 
that involves all councils and several other public sector bodies in the UK. 
Central government oversight of the NFI has now transferred to the new 
Public Sector Fraud Authority. 

8 The council uploaded mandated data sets in November 2022 and January 
2023. Matches have now begun to be released. These will be reviewed by 
relevant council officers. Any suspected instances of fraud will be reported 
to Veritau. 

 

 INVESTIGATIVE WORK 

9 Veritau have received 52 reports of potential fraud in 2022/23. These 
involve suspected council tax support, council tax and business rates 
discounts/exemptions, and covid-19 grant fraud. The team works closely 
with staff and encourages members of the public to report any concerns 
they have about fraud affecting the council.  

10 The counter fraud team has helped the council achieve £42.7k of savings in 
2022/23. The savings figures comprise repayment of debt arising from 
investigative work, a maximum of one year future savings if an 
investigation has stopped an ongoing fraud that would otherwise have 
continued, and the prevention of any one-off payments that would have 
been made without the intervention of the team. 

11 Investigations linked to the awards of government funded Covid-19 grant 
payments to businesses resulted in £24.5k of business rates savings. 
Information from new national data matches helped identify potential fraud 
and error that cannot be detected by local records alone. Officers 
processing applications also highlighted potentially incorrect awards of 
business rates exemptions. 

12 Warnings have been issued to five individuals following investigation. Two 
for failing to provide up to date information while receiving a single person 
discount, and two were issued to business owners who incorrectly received 
covid-19 grants payments and/or business rates exemptions. A further 
warning was issued to an individual for failing to provide correct information 
when receiving council tax support. 

13 Elven investigations are ongoing. Any cases that remain open at the end of 
March 2023 will transfer to the new North Yorkshire Council. 

14 A summary of investigative work is included in appendix A, below. 

  

Page 20



4 
 

 

APPENDIX A: SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATION ACTIVITY 
Activity to date includes the following: 

 2022/23 
(As at 13/02/23) 

2022/23 
(Target: Full Yr) 

2021/22 
(Actual: Full Yr) 

Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings - eg 
repayment of loss) identified through fraud investigation £32,757 £16,000 £12,294 

% of investigations completed which result in a 
successful outcome (for example payments stopped or 
amended, sanctions, prosecutions) 

53% 30% 47% 

Amount of savings from the prevention of Covid-19 
grant fraud £10,000 n/a £5,681 

 

Caseload figures for the period are: 

 2022/23 
(As at 13/02/23) 

2021/22 
(Full Year) 

Referrals received 52 85 

Number of cases under investigation 11 182 

Number of investigations completed 19 38 

  

 
2 As at 31/03/2022 

P
age 21



5 
 

 

Work completed or in progress 

The service promotes the use of criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond to any fraud perpetrated 
against the council. Activity in 2022/23 includes the following. 

• Covid-19 related fraud – Warnings have been issued to two individuals who incorrectly obtained covid-19 grant 
payments. Eight investigations have been completed in 2022/23, and two investigations are ongoing. The council has 
referred several businesses to the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy for recovery of grant 
payments. 

• Council Tax Reduction fraud – Investigations have helped recover £4.1k of incorrectly obtained council tax 
reduction. Two cases have been completed, one resulting in a warning being issued for failing to declare correct 
information. One case remains under investigation. 

• Council tax fraud – The team have eight council tax investigations ongoing. Nine cases have been completed, two 
resulting in warnings being issued. Investigative work has led to recovery of £4.1k of underpaid council tax. 

• NNDR fraud – One case is currently under investigation. Investigations linked to applications for Covid-19 grants have 
led to £24.5k of savings from recovered business rates, removal of exemptions and generation of new liabilities. 

• Internal fraud – No referrals of internal fraud have been received. 

 

P
age 22



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
 
Date: 21 March 2023 
 
From: Chief Executive Officer (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 Good governance is important to all involved in local government, however, it is a 

key responsibility of the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive (s151 Officer). 
 
1.2 The preparation and publication of an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) in 

accordance with the CIPFA / SOLACE Framework is necessary to meet the 
statutory requirements set out in Regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 which requires authorities to, at least once in a year, “conduct a 
review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control” and to prepare an 
annual governance statement “in accordance with proper practices”. 

 
1.3 The Annual Governance Statement attached at Annex A refers to the year 

2022/23 and has therefore been written to reflect the processes, management and 
committee structure at that time.  

 
2.0 The System of Internal Control 
 
2.1 The internal control system encompasses the policies, processes, tasks, 

behaviours and other aspects of the Council, taken together:- 
 

 Facilitate its effective and efficient operation by enabling it to respond 
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and 
other risks to achieving the Council's objectives. This includes the 
safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud. 

 
 Help ensure the quality of internal and external reporting. This requires the 

maintenance of proper records and processes that generate a flow of timely, 
relevant and reliable information from within and outside the organisation. 

 
 Help ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and also with 

internal policies with respect to the conduct of business. 
 

2.2 The scope of internal control accordingly spans the whole range of the Council's 
activities and includes those controls designed to ensure: 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



 The Council's policies are put into practice; 
 The Council's values are met; 
 Laws and regulations are complied with; 
 Required processes are adhered to; 
 Financial statements and other published information are accurate and 

reliable; 
 Human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively; 

and 
 High quality services are delivered economically, efficiently and effectively. 

 
3.0 The Review Process 
 
3.1 The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 

Framework (2016) defines proper practices from the form and content of a 
Governance Statement that meets the requirement to prepare and publish a 
statement on internal control. The Annual Governance Statement is attached at 
Annex A and will also be included within the Annual Financial Report - Statement of 
Accounts - 2022/23 when published. There is no requirement to prepare and 
publish a separate statement on internal control. 

 
3.2 Subsequent to the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 

Local Government”, which was issued in 2010, it is now expected that the Annual 
Governance Statement will include a specific statement on whether the Council’s 
financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of 
the statement - this is included in the ‘Summary’ section of the document.   
Furthermore, where they do not, it is necessary to explain why and how the 
Council’s arrangements deliver the same impact.   

 
3.3 At Hambleton there is full compliance. Since August 2022, the Chief Executive has 

undertaken the joint role as s151 Officer, so has unfettered access direct to 
Management Team. 

   
3.4 The External Auditor considers the Annual Governance Statement as part of their 

review of the Annual Financial Report - Statement of Accounts – 2022/23.  The 
Auditor is required to issue their opinion on the accounts as to whether they present 
a 'true and fair view' of the financial position of the Council at the Balance Sheet 
date. 

 
3.5 The Annual Governance Statement provides public assurance that the Council has 

a sound system of internal control, designed to help manage and control risks that 
will impede the achievement of its objectives. The Annual Governance Statement 
should not be seen as a purely financial requirement, but as an important public 
expression of what the Council has done, how it sets out priorities, monitors 
performance and has put in place good business practice. It is also about the 
process for ensuring high standards of conduct and is a means of demonstrating 
sound governance. 

 
3.6 In common with most local authorities, the Council has a well-established system of 

internal control in place. However, the Annual Governance Statement process 
requires the Council to formally demonstrate what these controls are and how they 
safeguard against the most significant risks to the organisation and to gain 
assurance, based on evidence, that these controls are operating effectively, or 
where they are not, to identify areas for improvement. 

Page 24



3.7 Assurance can be provided by evidence from a number of sources including: 
inspection records, external audit reports, internal audit reports and direct 
assurance from managers. It is the responsibility of both Members and Chief 
Officers to obtain and provide such assurance. The production and publication of an 
Annual Governance Statement is therefore not an isolated act, but the final stage in 
a continuing review of internal control processes and procedures. 

 
4.0 Conclusion 
 
4.1 Having taken evidence from a number of sources that could potentially identify 

whether there are any significant weaknesses in the Council’s system of internal 
control as detailed in the Annual Governance Statement, none have identified any 
such weaknesses in the system. Members can take assurance from this that the 
Council’s system of internal control is adequate and effective. 

 
5.0 Risk Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no risks associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
6.0 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations in the 

report. 
 
7.0 Legal Implications 
 
7.1 The Council is under a statutory duty to undertake a review of the systems of 

internal control operating within the Council during 2022/23 and to approve an 
Annual Governance Statement. Failure to undertake the review or present an 
Annual Governance Statement would be a breach of this statutory requirement. 

 
8.0 Recommendations 
 
8.1 It is recommended that Members:- 

 
(1) agree with the conclusion of the review of the system of internal control, and; 
 
(2) approve the content of the Annual Governance Statement attached at Annex A 

which will be published within the Annual Financial Report - Statement of 
Accounts - 2022/23 in due course as part of the financial year-end process. 

 
 
David Chefneux 
Interim Head of Finance 
 
Background papers: CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government: Framework 2016 Edition 
 CIPFA Finance Advisory Network ‘AGS ‘Rough Guide’ for 

practitioners. 
Author ref: DC 
Contact: David Chefneux 
 Interim Head of Finance  
 Direct Line No: 01609 767026 

Page 25



19  

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2022/23 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Scope of Responsibility 
 

Hambleton District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, 
and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Hambleton District Council also has a duty under 
the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way 
in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness, as well as ensuring that informed decisions are made, risks are properly managed and 
finances are sustainable so the Council uses resources to continue to deliver its services. 

 
 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Hambleton District Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk. The Authority's financial management 
arrangements confirm with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2016). 

 
Hambleton District Council's governance arrangements are consistent with the seven principles of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) Framework - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2016). The 
Annual Governance Statement sets out how the Authority has complied with the Code and also meets 
with regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, in relation to the publication of this 
statement - The Annual Governance Statement – on its Governance and internal control arrangements. 
 
The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes and culture and values, by which 
the Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and 
leads the community. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives 
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective 
services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and 
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of Hambleton District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised, and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically, ensuring financial sustainability. 

Page 26



20  

Core Principles of Good Governance 
 

The diagram below, taken from the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector 
(CIPFA/IFAC, 2016) (the ‘International Framework’), which is also included in the CIPFA / SOLACE 
Framework, illustrates the seven principles of good governance in the public sector and how they 
relate to each other. Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G illustrating that 
good governance is dynamic. In line with this, the Council's Annual Governance Statement 
demonstrates the Council is committed to improving its arrangements on a continuing basis through a 
process of evaluation and review, whilst achieving its objectives and acting in the best interest of the 
public. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Diagram 1: the seven principles of good governance in the public sector 
 

The Governance Framework – Key Elements 
 

The Council is made up of 28 Councillors who are democratically accountable to residents of the 
District. The Full Council appoints the Leader and the Leader appoints the Cabinet and Deputy Leader. 
The Cabinet is responsible for most strategic day to day decisions. The Council holds the Cabinet to 
account by appointing scrutiny committees to question decisions and to propose policy changes 
where appropriate. 

 
The key elements of the Authority’s governance framework are detailed against each principle in the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government and the following 
information demonstrates the Council’s assessment of compliance with 'the framework’ along with 
the Governance Issues Action Plan. 

Page 27



21  

Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating Strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law 
Assessment of 
Compliance 

It is considered that the Council's arrangements meet principle A of 'the framework' 

Values and 
Integrity 

Values and Integrity - Good governance flows from a shared ethos or culture as well as 
from systems and structures. The spirit of good governance can be expressed as values 
which become part of the Council’s culture and underpin policy and behaviour through 
the Council from the governing body to the staff; this is in addition to compliance with 
legal requirements. 

The Council's Values accord with the requirements of good governance and are key to 
the Council plan: 
 -  open, responsible, customer focused, fair and respectful 

Respecting the 
rule of law 

Respecting the rule of law - Ongoing monitoring and review of the Council’s activities is 
undertaken to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies 
and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. This gives assurance as to the 
soundness of the system of internal controls that are in place for respecting the rule of 
law. Hambleton District Council achieves this through a number of mechanisms: - 

 
Officers / 
Members of the 
Council 

 
• 

 
The Director of Law & Governance (Monitoring Officer) has access to all draft 
Cabinet and Council reports and approves the minutes; 

• 
 
 

• 
 
 
 
 
 

• 
 

• 
 
 
 
 

• 
 
 
 

• 
 
 
 
 

• 

The Legal Section monitors legal developments and notifies relevant Senior 
Officers; 

 
The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made 
and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to local people. Some of these processes are 
required by the law, while others are a matter for the Council to choose. 
 
 
A protocol for the Monitoring Officer is in place; 

 
Senior Officers and Members are aware of the availability of the advice on 
propriety which is available from both the Monitoring Officer and Veritau North 
Yorkshire Limited providing assurance services - internal audit, fraud and 
freedom of information services in 2022/23; 

 
The Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive (s151 Officer), Interim Head of Finance 
and Veritau North Yorkshire Limited have good working relations and often 
cross- refer matters; 

 
The Chief Executive (s151 Officer) has unfettered access to information, to the 
Management Team and to Members of the Council. Therefore, there are 
processes and procedures in place which provide assurance that the role of the 
Chief Finance Officer at Hambleton District Council meets the Statement's 
expectations. 
 
The Council’s Audit Governance and Standards Committee is responsible for 
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct within the Council. 

Page 28



22  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parish / Town 
Councils 

 
• The Council has Codes of Conduct for both Members and Officers which set 

out the standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected. 
 

• The Council has additional protocols which govern the conduct of work 
between members and officers. 

 
• The Council has arrangements in place to provide induction training to all newly 

elected councillor’s on the requirements of the Code of Conduct and other 
relevant codes, protocols, policies and procedures, and to ensure councillors 
meet their obligations to notify disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs). 

 
 

• The Council has arrangements in place to consider complaints submitted in 
accordance with the Council’s procedure for dealing with complaints against 
councillors under the code of conduct. 

 
• The Council has a pool of three Independent Persons in place. An Independent 

Person is consulted during the assessment stage on any code of conduct 
complaints received. An Independent Person attends any Standards Hearings 
Panel which is convened to consider any code of conduct complaint referred to 
it. 

 
• The Council has clear arrangements in place for the declaration of interests 

and for the registration of gifts and hospitality. 
 

• The Council has arrangements in place to consider Code of Conduct 
complaints submitted against parish / town councillors. 

 
• The Council provides advice to Parish / Town Councils on Code of Conduct 

matters 

Link to Governance Issue Action Plan None Significant 

 
  

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

Page 29



23  

 
Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
Assessment of 
compliance 

It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle B of ‘the framework' 

Partnership 
Approach 

The Authority works closely with other local public bodies, community and voluntary 
groups via a partnership approach to ensure effective delivery of its services. This is 
detailed in the Council Plan 2019-2023 which was approved at Cabinet in July 2021. Our 
Purpose section of the Council Plan 2019-2023 includes Community Leadership and 
Place Shaping which aims to make best use of increased devolved power and finances 
for local decision making, working with our partners, and to be responsive and flexible 
with our partners to meet their needs and requirements for improvements for all. 

 

Business, 
Economic 
Development 
and community 
working 

The Business & Economy section connect with many businesses on an individual and 
group basis. Lunch & learn sessions are held regularly, as well as support provided for 
grant funding obtainable from many sources. The business awards and business 
conference providing an opportunity for businesses to network. 
Leisure & Communities provide support to all residents for sport and leisure activities 
through individual and group interventions and activities and also through the Council’s 
Make a Difference Fund. In 2022/23, a number of community funding initiatives were 
implemented to help communities recover from the Covid pandemic and from economic 
hardship. In addition, two key Council projects supported local communities through the 
Thirsk & Sowerby and Northallerton Sport Villages projects. 

Communication The Council’s communications team uses social media and works with the press to 
ensure information is received across the district. The Council’s website is also user 
friendly and enables access to Council information. The Social Media strategy and 
policy was approved at Cabinet in April 2018 and has been absorbed into the Council as 
an additional communication channel on a daily basis. Internal communication across 
the Council is via Microsoft Teams, the intranet, staff and Member newsletters, individual 
section briefings and briefings by the Chief Executive. In preparation for Local 
Government Reorganisation (LGR), regular Chief Executive and staff briefings have 
been introduced to keep everyone appraised of plans, changes and implications of LGR. 

Transparency To demonstrate its openness, the Council adheres to the Local Government 
Transparency Code 2015 which is the foundation of local accountability and provides 
access to areas such as the pay policy, payments to suppliers, senior officer salaries, 
parking, waste contracts and grants. This information can be located at 

https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20097/transparency/262/transparency 
Consultations Consultations are used across the Council to engage with the public and enable their 

direct views to influence strategies and policies. In addition, to enable the public to 
highlight concerns, a complaints and compliments procedure is in place which is reported 
on a quarterly basis to Management Team, along with the numbers. 

Openness, transparency and community engagement is the key that gives people the 
tools and information they need to enable them to play a bigger role in society. 

Link to Governance Issue Action Plan None Significant 

Page 30

https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/info/20097/transparency/262/transparency


24  

 

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits 
Assessment of 
compliance 

It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle C of ‘the framework’ with 
clarification provided in the Governance Issues Action Plan 

Council Plan 
Outcomes 

The outcomes of the Council, to provide quality services, are determined in the Council 
Plan 2019-2023, which is updated annually. The plan sets out objectives focused on 
outcomes for communities, residents, businesses and visitors under the four priority 
headings: under the four priority headings: 

 •  Driving Economic Vitality 
 •  Enhancing Health and Wellbeing 
 •  

•  
Caring for the Environment 
Providing a Special Place to Live 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
which details Hambleton District Council’s purpose towards achieving social, 
environmental and sustainable benefits for the vision ‘a place to grow’. The Council Plan 
specifically focuses on community leadership, place shaping and delivering services to 
ensure working with partnership or to achieve shared aspirations. The Council Plan is 
located at:  
https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/downloads/download/294/hdc-council-plan-2019-23 
 
During 2022/23 the Council has continued to deliver the Council Plan ensuring that 

 measures were in place for all employees, to support them through the on-going impacts 
of the COVID-19 pandemic and enable them to work safely. Throughout the year 2022/23, 
the Council has also implemented measures to support the community and employees in 
managing financial hardship challenges arising from the cost-of-living crisis. 

  
 Office recovery plans and risk assessments to ensure COVID-19 safe measures were in 

place, as well as HR policies and this has been in conjunction with ICT, enabling everyone 
 to work from home via Microsoft Teams and soft phones through the laptop roll out. 

 
 
Sustainable 
economic, 
Social, 
environmental 

In setting the priorities, national, regional and the public’s priorities were considered, 
which results in the setting of the Council’s Key Performance indicators. These indicators 
are monitored on a quarterly basis by the operational business where the Council has 
established effective arrangements through Service Plans, reported to Management 
Team and then also to Members at Scrutiny Committee. 

The Council's decision-making process in Cabinet reports requires decision 
makers to consider risk assessment, financial implications, legal implications and 
equality/diversity issues and health & safety matters where appropriate. 
 
To ensure that project management and future plans deliver value for money, the 
sustainability of the Financial Strategy is key. The Financial Strategy was previously 
reduced from 10 years to 4 years, to accommodate the impact of Local Government 
Reorganisation.  
 
The Treasury Management Strategy, in its relationship with the Capital Programme, also 
enables an affordable and prudent approach to the Council’s plans and projects. Finally, 
the annual accounts support stewardship responsibilities and are subject to external 
audit opinion. 

Page 31

https://www.hambleton.gov.uk/downloads/download/294/hdc-council-plan-2019-23


25  

 

Covid-19 
Pandemic 
Support 

Supporting residents - the Council has contacted vulnerable residents in need and 
liaised with delivery partners to proactively support them. This encompasses 
providing for the homeless and also there was a process in place 
to support those that are in the highly vulnerable group. In addition, the Council has 
provided funds for the community grants to support those who applied. 
 
Re-opening High Streets - Local Businesses have been supported by the Council 
with consideration being given to signage, social distancing, and closure of market 
town roads in order to attract people back to the 5 market towns in the district. 
 
Pavement Licences - The Government temporarily provided a new streamlined 
process for premises selling hot or cold food for takeaway (or consumption on the 
premises including cafes, snack bars, bars, pubs and restaurants) to be able to 
put tables and chairs and associated restaurant furniture on the highway, via an 
application to the local council. 

Link to Governance Issue 
Action Plan 

1 - Key Council Projects 2022/23 
1 - Impact of Covid-19 pandemic 2022/23 

 
Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 
Outcome 
Assessment of 
compliance 

It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle D of ‘the framework’ with 
clarification provided in the Governance Issues Action Plan. 

Relationships Member and Officer relationships - It is necessary that Members and Officers perform 
effectively in clearly defined roles to achieve the intended outcomes with the required 
level of intervention. 
 
Excellent relationships between Officers and Members exist, which are based on mutual 
trust enabling decisions to be made in a productive and transparent way. Trust is 
maintained through the involvement of all relevant parties at the right level of 
responsibility ensuring strategic decisions are led by Members and implementation of 
operational matters are at officer level directed by Management team. 

Page 32



26  

Roles and 
Responsibilities 

Roles and responsibilities are defined in The Constitution for the cabinet, scrutiny and 
officer functions with clear delegation arrangements. The Constitution includes the Code 
of Member Conduct, a Code for Planning Conduct and an Officer and Member Protocol, 
as well as the financial regulations. 

Forward 
Planning 

Democratic Services Forward Plan - All meetings of the Cabinet and key Committees are 
included in the Council’s Forward Plan, which is published and available to the public. All 
minutes are published where all delegated decisions are also recorded. 

Change in the 
way the Council 
operates 

During 2022/23, the Council has transitioned from supported residents and the local 
community with the on-going impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, through to the cost-of-
living crisis and future implications of local government reorganisation. 
 
In preparation for LGR, the Council has worked closely with neighbouring Councils 
through various workstreams and working groups, to ensure the transition to the new 
Council from 1st April 2023 is as smooth as possible.  

   

Financial 
Sustainability 

Financial sustainability - In order to achieve the long-term financial targets the Authority 
has a four-year financial strategy for 2022/23 which is supported by the annual budget, 
setting the required income and savings targets for the year ahead. All the expected 
risks to the Authority were considered in the Financial Strategy 2022/23 report approved 
by Council prior to the beginning of the financial year and the position of reserves 
underpins the long-term financial resilience of the Council. 

The four-year Financial Strategy has given medium-term certainty of funding and 
highlights the need to continue to identify efficiency savings and generate additional 
income. The Strategy set for 2022/23 maintains a target of £2m of reserves at the end 
of the four- year period. From 1st April 2023, services of the Council will transfer to North 
Yorkshire Council as part of Local Government Reorganisation. From this date, financial 
strategy will form part of the new Council’s responsibilities. 

Governance 
Committee 

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - This Committee is an essential part of 
good governance, with aspects of governance, risk management, internal and external 
audit, fraud and financial management being reported throughout the 2022/23 year. 
 
Internal and External Audit both have direct access to and support the Committee 
including the ability to have direct contact, without Officers of the Authority being present. 
The detailed matters reviewed by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee can 
be viewed at the quarterly meetings located at: 

http://democracy.hambleton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=149&Year=0 
Link to Governance Issue 
Action Plan 

  
2- Financial Sustainability 2022/23 

Page 33

http://democracy.hambleton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=149&Year=0


27  

 

Principle E - Developing the entity's capacity including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it 
Assessment of It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle E of ‘the framework' with 

clarification provided in the Governance Issue Action Plan compliance 
Senior 
Management 
Structure 

Senior Management Structure - There are three Directors, where the Director of Leisure 
& Communities and the Director of Environment report to the Deputy Chief Executive. 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer report directly to the Chief Executive. 
 
Following the departure of the Interim Director of Finance in August 2022, the Chief 
Executive also took on the statutory s151 Officer role. The structure operates effectively 
and has delivered service improvements and a broad range of corporate projects. 
 
Support is also provided from Heads of Service, where the Head of Service for 
Commercial & Programme Management supports income generation and project 
management across the Council, with the Head of Planning and interim Head of 
Business and Economy reporting to the Deputy Chief Executive. 

Individual In 2017 the Council embarked on a programme of individual performance management 
which replaced annual appraisals to bring a more fluid interaction approach to continued 
conversations between managers and officers to create a better ownership, 
responsibility and communicative organisation. The purpose of this is to achieve a 
balance between achieving organisational performance goals and personal 
development. The aim is that by encouraging individuals to take responsibility for their 
areas of work and own development, capacity will be released within the organisation, 
whilst empowering decision making and ownership. This approach is ‘High Challenge, 
High Support’ and further work is continuing to embed this approach across the 
authority. 

Performance 
Management 

Key Skills With the ambitions of the Council as seen in the Council Plan, comes the 
knowledge and acknowledgement that key decisions across the organisation need to be made by 
decision the right people with the right knowledge. The Capital Strategy details an approach 
making to ensure that expert advice is acquired from outside the organisation if required. 
 The Capital Strategy is approved annually as part of the budget setting process. 

 
Staff Staff Development - The Council supports individuals to review their own training 

requirement in the area at work where both the individual and the organisation will 
benefit. There are numerous graduates supported across the Council as well as 
apprenticeships being provided. During 2022/23, all employees have also had the 
opportunity to consider further study through graduate or MA courses, so the workforce 
remains fully equipped for future challenges. Staff have also received regular 
updates/bulletins and have attended periodic seminars to ensure they are fully briefed 
and prepared leading into the transition to the new Council as part of LGR. 
 

Development 

Training Training Requirements – The HR Strategy supports a variety of training techniques 
including the Induction training, Member training, Individual Performance Management 
coaching, Learning & Development training calendar, online learning, and bespoke 
courses, presentations to employees and Members alike. 

Requirements 

Health and The Employee Assistance programme RISE was launched across the Council on 1st 
April 2021 to support all staff regarding mental health, physical, financial, or personal 
issues. 
 

Wellbeing 

Link to Governance Issue Action Plan 3 - Resources for 2022/23 

Page 34



28  

 

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 
management 
Assessment of 
Compliance 

It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle F of ‘the framework’ with 
clarification provided in the Governance Issues Action Plan. 

Public Scrutiny 
of Risk 
Management 

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee have responsibility for overseeing the 
Risk Management Strategy and has delegated to the Scrutiny Committee to oversee the 
strategic risk register on a quarterly basis. Significant changes to the risk management 
process are reported to both Committees. 

Risk Management is a standard element of all officer reports to Cabinet and other 
Member Committees etc. All senior officers are required to implement the strategy and 
to further embed risk management within the Council. Risks are reported to 
Management Team on a quarterly basis with a full review occurring annually. 

 
Risk Register The Risk Register incorporates corporate, project and service risks associated with 

delivery of the Council's corporate objectives under each Council Plan priority and key 
projects. During 2019/20 the changes to the process of managing risk were finalised 
with a Strategic Risk Management Group (which meets quarterly) championing risk 
across the Council to ensure consistency and appropriate challenge. Detailed 
information is available in the quarterly reports: 

http://democracy.hambleton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=149&Year=0 
Risk Training Members of the Cabinet, the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, Members, 

Risk Owners and other selected staff received specialist training in Spring 2019, which 
can be refreshed when required. The Risk Management Guidance Manual is revised 
annually and was approved by Audit Governance and Standards Committee in October 
2019; the revised version is also available to all employees on the intranet. 

Development of 
Risk 
Management 

With the measures mentioned above in place the Council can identify, assess and 
manage the risks to the Council’s corporate objectives. Development of the risk 
management process across the Council was finalised in 2019/20 and has enabled the 
Council to understand the exposure to risk that the Council faces.  
 
Enhancement of the risk process continues with the Council considering all risks 
throughout 2022/23. Ahead of the transition to the new Council from 1st April 2023, a 
briefing session was undertaken with members of the new North Yorkshire Council Audit 
Committee in November 2022, to identify key risks that will carry forward from 
Hambleton to the new Council and how these risks are currently being mitigated. 
 

Partnership 
Risks 

The Council recognises the need to ensure that good governance arrangements and 
robust controls exist within all partners and other group working. It also recognises the 
need for comprehensive agreements to be in place for all significant partnerships and 
that these agreements should clearly identify how the risks of the partnership or working 
group arrangements will be managed. All Council projects and working relationships 
have a risk register to ensure projects are managed effectively and the required outcome 
results. During 2020/21, the Commercial and Economic Developments Initiatives 
internal audit report provided substantial assurance in the Council's governance risk 
management and effective, monitoring of partnership working. 

Link to Governance Issue 
Action Plan 

4 - Loss of ICT Systems / Data 2022/23 

Page 35

http://democracy.hambleton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=149&Year=0


29  

 

Principle G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 
accountability 
Assessment of 
Compliance 

It is considered that the Council’s arrangements meet Principle G of ‘the framework’- 
with clarification provided in the Government Issues Action Plan 

Effective 
accountability 

The Cabinet and Council - There is a hierarchy of decision making at Hambleton District 
Council to ensure reporting delivers effective accountability. Any new draft policies or 
strategies are developed and then submitted to the Management Team. Once any 
amendments have been made, the policy/strategy moves on to Cabinet and then on to 
the full Council for approval. Local Government Ethical Standards produced in January 
2019 highlights the need to report on ‘separate bodies’ that have been set up. 

In all reports to Cabinet, risk is considered in the section ‘risk assessment’ and 
specifically, risks inform the financial strategy position approved annually in the February 
Financial Strategy report, thereby concluding financial sustainability for 2022/23. 
Quarterly financial monitoring reports are submitted to Cabinet, to enhance transparency 
and regular reporting requirements. 

Effective 
Corporate 
Governance 

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - The Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee has specific responsibility for monitoring the effectiveness of the 
Council’s Code of Corporate Governance and to ensure that the Council undertakes its 
duties in an appropriate manner and maintains a high standard of Corporate 
Governance. Numerous reports updated the Committee on a quarterly basis throughout 
the year. 
The Committee has received an update report on the CIPFA Financial Management 
Code on 25 January 2022 to raise awareness of the Council’s sensitivity to financial 
sustainability including a detailed actions plan. 

Scrutiny Scrutiny Committee - Part of the function of the Council’s Scrutiny Committee is to 
scrutinise Council policies. It does not have a specific role in dealing with Governance, 
although it reviews the Council’s strategic risks on a quarterly basis. 

Assurance 
Services 

Internal Audit and Fraud - The Council also operates internal audit and fraud 
investigation functions which comply with the Accounts and Audit Regulations and the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The service in 2022/23 was provided by Veritau 
North Yorkshire Limited. Veritau’s internal audit and counter fraud teams undertake an 
annual programme of review covering financial and operational systems and including 
systems, regularity, and probity audits designed to give assurance to members and 
managers on the effectiveness of the governance, risk management and control 
environment operating within the Council. Through its work Veritau also provides 
assurance to the Section 151 Officer in discharging that statutory review and reporting 
responsibilities. In addition, the team: 

· provides advice and assistance to managers in the design, implementation and 
operation of controls 

· helps to maintain the council’s counter fraud arrangements including policy 
framework 

· supports managers in the prevention and detection of fraud, corruption and 
other irregularities. 

During 2020/21, a joint working group was set up between the Council and Veritau North 
Yorkshire Limited to discuss the Covid-19 business grant assurance process and Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee continue to be updated in the Annual Fraud 
report. This joint working has continued throughout 2022/23. 

Link to Governance Issue 
Action Plan 

  
5 - Business Continuity Planning 2022/23 

Page 36



30  

Review of Effectiveness 
 

Self-assessment and review 
Hambleton District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control and this is 
documented in this Annual Governance Statement. The Council recognises an ongoing need to 
review its governance arrangements and to respond to external reports and changes in legislation to 
ensure it continues to learn, improve systems and ensure compliance with relevant regulations. 

 
Therefore, during the year numerous reports have been presented to Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee to confirm ongoing good governance arrangements. An annual review of 
Risk Management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee’s terms of reference were 
considered by the Committee in September 2022 

 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior officers and managers within the 
Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, 
Management Team, Veritau North Yorkshire Limited's Internal Audit Annual and quarterly Reports and 
also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 
Assurances from Internal and External Audit 

 
In 2022/23, the overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit from Veritau North Yorkshire Limited on the 
the governance, risk management and control framework operating in the Council is that it provides 
Substantial Assurance. 

 
The Council’s external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, provides assurance on the accuracy of the year- 
end Statement of Accounts and the overall adequacy of arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. The most recent Audit Letter, issued in August 2019, confirmed that they 
had been able to give an unqualified audit opinion in respect of the Council’s 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts, and concluded that proper arrangements were in place to secure value for money in the 
use of resources.  
 
The 2019/20 audit remains ongoing due to recent nationwide consultation regarding proposed changes 
to infrastructure assets and the 2020/21 and 2021/22 audits are due to commence in May 2023. 
Although Draft Statements of Account have been prepared for all three financial years and approved by 
the Council, financial and reputational risk remains for the Council until the audits are concluded. 
 
 
Local Government Reorganisation 
 
In giving the assurances above, we would note that preparations for local government reorganisation 
(LGR) have, over the last year, required a significant investment of time, effort and resources across 
the organisation. This has put strain on the Council’s control environment and its business operations. 
 
The Council has had to operate during periods of uncertainty and substantial change all while 
maintaining service delivery and other key support functions. The unique circumstances and 
uncertainty brought about by the LGR transition have combined to create a very challenging operating 
environment. 

Page 37



31  

Key Governance Issues Action Plan 2022/23: 
 

Last year’s Annual Governance Report highlighted six key areas for improvement. The table below sets 
out action taken to address these issues during 2022/23: 
 
 

The Action Plan below identifies the following governance issues and major risks for the Council 
for 2022/23. 
 

Issue 
 

Principle Action taken during 2022/23 
Responsible 
Officer 

Key Council 
Projects not 

delivered could 
result in 

reputational 
damage to the 

Council or 
increased 
financial 

pressure in the 
future. 

 
 
 
 
 

C 

 
· 

Key project Groups exist for high level 
projects - Treadmills, Climate Change 
Thirsk and Sowerby Sports Village and 
Northallerton Sports Village. 

 
Deputy Chief 
Executive / 
Director of 

Leisure and 
Communities / 

Director of 
Environment / 

Chief 
Executive 

(S151 Officer) 

 
 
 

· 

Key updates on projects are reported 
quarterly to Cabinet, Programme 
Management Board and Management 
Team receive regular update reports. The 
risks of council projects are reflected in the 
four-year Financial Strategy. 

Impact of 
COVID-19 

Pandemic / 
Cost of living 

crisis 

 
 
 
 
 

C 

 
· 

Ongoing risk assessments within the 
workplace. Working from home supported, 
where appropriate. 

Deputy Chief 
Executive / 
Director of 

Leisure and 
Communities / 

Director of 
Environment / 

Chief 
Executive 

(S151 Officer) 

· Working with communities to support their 
needs. Additional funding provided to 
support financial hardship across the 
community 

 
· 

 
Business and economy recovery plan to 
support the district. 

Financial 
Sustainability - 

Significant 
reductions in 
government 

funding leading to 
the inability to 

sustain the 
Council’s services 

at the current 
level - the ability 

to income 
generate does 
not occur in line 

with the 
projection 

included in the 
financial strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D 

 
 
 
 

 
· 

 
Income to be generated to support the 
financial strategy is ongoing with the new 
contributions being from the development of 
the crematorium and Treadmills, which 
partly opened in 2022/23.  
 
2022/23 has also seen an additional 
challenge on the Council’s finances and 
income generation arising from the cost-of-
living crisis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief 
Executive 

(S151 Officer)  
 
 

· 

Funding information provided from central 
Government around the Business Rates 
Retention and the Fair Funding Review 
remains unclear and these risks will pass to 
the new North Yorkshire Council as part of 
LGR from 1st April 2023. 

Page 38



32  

 

Resources of 
the Council are 
under pressure 

due to local 
government 

reorganisation 

 
 
 
 
 
 

E 

·  
Management Team and Cabinet has 
received regular updates throughout the 
year regarding local government 
reorganisation and the impact this will have 
in terms of resources both financial 
resources and staff retention.  In May 2022, 
arrangements were put in place under s24 
of the Local Government and Public Health 
Act 2007, which required the Council to 
seek consent from the s151 Officer of North 
Yorkshire County Council before entering 
into certain contracts or land disposals.  
 

 
 

All / Chief 
Executive 

(s151 Officer) 

 
 
 
 

Loss of ICT 
Systems or 

data 

 
 
 
 
 

F 

 
 

· 

Cyber Security Incident Management Plan 
in place to be reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis with compulsory annual Cyber 
Security training for all users to be 
refreshed as required. 

 
 
 
 

All / Chief 
Executive (s151 

Officer) 
 
 

· 

Annual review Information Security Policy 
and Annual IT Health Check and remedial 
work PSN (Public Services Network) 
compliance. Regularly testing of Disaster 
Recovery Plan. A successful Disaster 
Recovery Test was undertaken in November 
2022 and subsequently audited by Veritau in 
February 2023 with an overall audit opinion 
of Substantial Assurance. 
 

Ineffective 
business 

continuity plans 
leading to loss 
of service e.g. 

Covid-19 

 
 
 

G 

· Plans are in place to safeguard business 
continuity and respond to major incidents. 

 
 

Director of 
Environment / All 

 Learning outcomes from previous major 
incidents will be used to inform future plans 

·  

Page 39



33  

Summary 
 

The Council is satisfied with the level of assurance with regards to its governance 
arrangements which enable stakeholders to recognise that proper arrangements are in place 
to govern spending and the safeguarding of assets. The governance issues raised in the 'action 
plan' will be addressed on an ongoing basis to further enhance the governance arrangements. 
The evaluation on the effectiveness of arrangements detailed within the seven principles and 
the action plans, provides assurance that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for 
purpose in accordance with the governance framework. 

 
Annual Governance Statement signed by: 

 
 
 
 

Signed: Date: x March 2023 
Councillor Mark Robson 
Leader of the Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  Date: x March 2023 
 
Justin Ives BA, MA, DBA, FCMI, FCCA 
Chief Executive (s151 Officer) 

 

Page 40



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
 
Date: 21 March 2023 
 
From: Chief Executive Officer (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: Statutory Auditor Audit Plan 2020/21 
 
Portfolio Holder: Economic Development and Finance 
 Councillor P R Wilkinson 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Council’s statutory auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, 

to provide the Committee with the External Audit Plan which sets out how they 
intend to carry out their responsibilities as auditor.  The Audit Plan’s purpose is to 
provide the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee with a basis to review the 
proposed audit approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit in accordance with 
regulations. 

 
1.2 A representative from Ernst & Young LLP will be in attendance at the meeting to go 

over the report. It will also provide an opportunity for Members to question the 
auditor.   

 
1.3 This Audit Plan summarises the initial assessment of the key risks driving the 

development of an effective audit for Hambleton District Council (“the Council”), and 
outlines the planned audit strategy in response to those risks.  The plan also sets 
out the proposed fee structure for the 2020/21 audit.   The report is attached at 
Annex A. 

 
2.0 Risk Management: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approving the recommendation.   
 
3.0 Recommendations: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members note the Audit Plan, the audit approach, the scope 

for 2020/21 audit and the proposed fee structure for the 2020/21 audit. 
 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive (s151 Officer) 
 
Background papers: None  
Author ref:   DC 
Contact:   David Chefneux 
    Interim Head of Finance 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



Hambleton 
District Council
Audit planning report 
Year ended 31 March 2021 

March 2023P
age 42



2

Private and Confidential

March 2023

Dear Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit in accordance 
with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for Hambleton District Council, and 
outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 21 March 2023 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you 
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Hassan Rohimun

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
Hambleton District Council
Civic Centre
Northallerton
DL6 2UU

P
age 43



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It
summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)” issued by the PSAA (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-
guidance-1-july-2021/) sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and 
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton 
District Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
20/21 audit strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 44

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/)
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-guidance-1-july-2021/


4

Overview of our 2020/21 audit  
strategy

01 01

P
age 45



5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition

Fraud risk/ 
Significant risk

No change in risk or 
focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by 
Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that 
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by 
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk No change in risk or 
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Transfer of opening balances Inherent risk New inherent risk From 1 April 2020, the Council has introduced a new Enterprise Resource 
Planning system, Civica, which hosts its General Ledger and associated records. 
There is a risk that closing balances at 31 March 2020 from the previous system 
were not appropriately transferred into Civica, which would lead to misstatement 
in the current year financial statements.

Merger of Hambleton District Council 
into North Yorkshire Council

Inherent risk

Value for Money 
risk

New inherent risk In July 2021, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC) announced the merger of county, district and borough councils, including 
Hambleton District Council, across North Yorkshire into a single unitary authority. 
On 31 March 2023, will cease to exist and the Council’s services and functions will 
transfer to the new Authority.

There is a risk that Going Concern and Events After the Balance Sheet Date 
disclosures are incomplete.

Our VFM work will also consider Governance arrangements to manage the merger 
of Hambleton District Council into North Yorkshire Council.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 46



6

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Valuation of land and buildings Inherent risk No change in risk or 
focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a significant 
balance in the Council’s accounts and is subject to valuation changes, impairment 
reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make material 
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end 
balance recorded in the balance sheet.

Pension liability valuation Inherent risk No change in risk or 
focus

The pension liability is the most significant liability on the Council’s balance sheet 
and is calculated through use of a number of actuarial assumptions. A small 
movement in these assumptions can have a material impact on the balance sheet.

IFRS16 - Leases Inherent risk Decrease in risk or 
focus

As a result of the pandemic, the implementation of IFRS 16 has been further 
deferred to the 2024/25 Code and will apply from 1 April 2024. While the 
standard is expected to have significant practical and financial impact for local 
authorities due to the prevalence of leasing in local government and the risk that 
the changes could have a budgetary impact if not managed effectively, this 
standard does not come into effect until after the conclusion of Local Government 
Reorganisation.

Senior officer remuneration Value for Money 
risk

New Value for 
Money risk

Our 2019/20 audit has identified weaknesses relating to the documentation of 
performance related pay and exit packages approved for senior officers. 

For performance related pay, we identified that performance appraisal 
documentation did not contain detailed consideration of performance and 
rationale for awards made and that consultations on pay awards were not fully 
documented. For exit packages, we identified that HR and legal advice was not 
fully documented and retained to evidence that decisions were appropriately 
made and were in the best interests of the Council

Preparation basis of the financial 
statements

Value for Money 
risk

New Value for 
Money risk

Our 2019/20 audit has identified weaknesses relating to the arrangements put in 
place for the preparation basis of the financial statements, including valuation of 
assets and group structures.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit, Governance and 
Standards Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 47



7

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Materiality

Group audit
differences

£33,000

Materiality has been set at £660,000 for the Hambleton group, which represents 1.25% of the draft gross expenditure on provision of 
services for 2020/21. This represents a decrease from the prior year’s materiality (£878,000) as set out in section 4. For the single entity 
accounts, we have set planning materiality as £652,000 on the same basis.

Performance materiality has been set at £330,000, which represents 50% of materiality. For the single entity accounts, we 
have set performance materiality as £326,000 on the same basis.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the group primary statements (Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow 
Statement and the Collection Fund) greater than £33,000.  Other misstatements identified will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee. For the single entity accounts, we have set our reporting threshold as £32,000 on the same 
basis.

Group planning
materiality

£660,000 Group 
performance 

materiality

£330,000Single entity 
planning

materiality

£652,000 Single entity 
performance

materiality

£326,000 Single entity 
audit differences

£32,000

P
age 48



8

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Hambleton District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of the 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

▪ Our commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant period. We include further details on VFM in Section 03. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes;
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on 
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with 
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension 
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the ISA 540 (revised) and 
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of Hambleton District Council’s audit, we will discuss 
these with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

Effects of climate-related matters on financial statements and Value for Money arrangements
Public interest in climate change is increasing. We are mindful that climate-related risks may have a long timeframe and therefore while risks exist, the impact on the 
current period financial statements may not be immediately material to an entity. It is nevertheless important to understand the relevant risks to make this evaluation. In 
addition, understanding climate-related risks may be relevant in the context of qualitative disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and value for money 
arrangements.
We make inquiries regarding climate-related risks on every audit as part of understanding the entity and its environment. As we re-evaluate our risk assessments 
throughout the audit, we continually consider the information that we have obtained to help us assess the level of inherent risk. 

P
age 49



9

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Value for money conclusion

We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

➢ We are required to consider whether the Council has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

➢ Planning on value for money and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the 
Council’s arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying and reporting on any significant 
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. 

➢ We will provide a commentary on the Council’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:
➢ Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
➢ Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
➢ Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 

delivers its services.

➢ The commentary on VFM arrangements will be included in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

P
age 50



10

Audit risks02 01

P
age 51



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We plan to perform the following procedures to address the risk:

• Test a sample of grants and contributions to confirm that they have 
been recognised in accordance with agreed terms and conditions;

• Test a sample of capital additions to confirm they meet the criteria for 
capitalisation set out in accounting standards;

• Review minutes of Council, Cabinet and other key meetings to identify 
any potential accruals or provisions which may have been omitted from 
the financial statements; and

• Review a sample of transactions recorded in the general ledger and 
payments from the bank account post year end, to confirm that the 
associated income and expenditure has been recorded in the correct 
period.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to the risk of fraud in 
revenue and expenditure 
recognition could affect the income 
and expenditure accounts. The 
draft accounts for 2020/21 show 
the following values for provision of 
services:

Gross Income: £53.4m 
(2019/20: £42.1m)

Gross Expenditure: £52.2m
(2019/20: £43.4m)

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

Our judgement is that the significant risk at the 
Council relates to the recognition of grants, the 
potential for improper capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure and the omission of expenditure in 
the financial statements. We will therefore 
target our audit work in these areas.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition*

P
age 52



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

We plan to perform the following procedures to address the risk:

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages;

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks;

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud;

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed 
to address the risk of fraud;

• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of 
fraud; and

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments in 
the preparation of the financial statements consideration of whether 
accounting estimates are free from material bias and a review for 
unusual transactions..

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in 
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We 
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every 
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error*

P
age 53



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Transfer of opening balances
From 1 April 2020, the Council has introduced a new Enterprise Resource 
Planning system, Civica, which hosts its General Ledger and associated 
records. There is a risk that closing balances at 31 March 2020 from the 
previous system were not appropriately transferred into Civica, which would 
lead to misstatement in the current year financial statements.

We will:

• Compare the opening balances for the year from the Civica platform to the closing 
balances from the E-financial system; and

• Consider whether the updated mapping of the council’s data to its accounts from 
Civica is appropriate.

Merger of Hambleton District Council into North Yorkshire Council

In July 2021, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC) announced the merger of county, district and borough councils, 
including Hambleton District Council, across North Yorkshire into a single 
unitary authority. On 31 March 2023, the Council will cease to exist and the 
Council’s services and functions will transfer to the new Authority.

While the CIPFA code states that combinations of public sector bodies are not 
to be taken as negating the presumption of going concern, management is 
required to make relevant disclosures as part of its assessment. There is a risk 
that these disclosures, and disclosures relating to Events after the Reporting 
Period are incomplete.

We will:

• Review management’s going concern assessment and proposed disclosures for 
going concern and events after the reporting period;

• Consider any further developments relevant to the Council; and

• Consider whether, as a result of the merger, the financial sustainability, 
governance or economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Council has been 
affected.

Valuation of land and buildings

The value of land and buildings represents the most significant asset balance in 
the Council’s financial statements, and is subject to Valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make 
material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the 
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We will:

• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, Align, including the 
adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and 
the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their 
valuation(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Review the Council’s Fixed Asset Register and assess the basis of valuation. Our 
testing focuses on areas with higher judgemental methodologies;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued 
within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually 
for IP. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have 
occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 54



14

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining 
asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 
and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Pension liability valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council 
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its 
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by North 
Yorkshire Pension Fund. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code 
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. In the 
draft financial statements, as at 31 March 2021, this totals £26.2 million.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued by the Council’s 
actuary, AON Hewitt.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement, and 
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on 
their behalf. ISAs 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use 
of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:

• Liaise with the audit team of North Yorkshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances 
over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Hambleton District 
Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have 
used by relying on the work of PwC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the 
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering 
any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; 

• Use EY pensions experts to perform a roll forward of liabilities to validate the 
pensions liability to address the requirements of the updated ISA 540; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

P
age 55



15

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 56



16

Value for Money

Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding 
and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal. 

As part of the material published with the financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on the governance framework and how 
this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing the governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its own 
individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in 
support of that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on arrangements for securing value for money from the use of resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities

Under the NAO Code of Audit Practice we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place 
‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. The 
Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable 
them to report to the Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the 
arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and 
effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

▪ Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue 
to deliver its services.

▪ Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 
risks.

▪ Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs 
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Arrangements for 
securing value for money

Financial 
Sustainability

Improving 
Economy, 

Efficiency & 
Effectiveness 

Governance 

P
age 57



17

Value for Money

Planning and identifying risks of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

The NAO’s guidance notes requires us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Council’s 
arrangements, in order to enable us  to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant 
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider: 

• The Council’s governance statement; 

• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period; 

• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts; 

• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and 

• Any other evidence source that we regards as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties. 

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment 
of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in 
arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:

• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or 

• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on 
action/improvement plans. 

We should also be informed by a consideration of: 

• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;  

• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or 
cashflow forecasts; 

• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance; 

• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned; 

• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review; 

• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State; 

• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue; 

• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and 

• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue. 

V
F
M

P
age 58



18

Value for Money

Responding to identified risks of significant weakness 

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to 
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge 
of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. 

V
F
M

Reporting on VFM 

Where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the Code 
requires that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

In addition, the Code requires us to include the commentary on arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. The Code states that the commentary should be 
clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider public. This should include details of any 
recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been implemented 
satisfactorily.

Status of our 2020/21 VFM planning 

We have yet to complete our detailed VFM planning. However, we expect to have risks in the following areas based on our work performed in 2019/20. This 
includes:

• For Performance Related Pay, the documentation of appraisals, including consideration of performance and rationale for awards made, and consultations 
held thereon;

• For Exit Packages, the documentation of HR and legal advice received regarding whether decisions have been appropriately made and were in the best 
interests of the Council; and

• The arrangements put in place for the preparation basis of the financial statements, including valuation of assets and group structures.

We also expect our VFM work to consider Governance arrangements to manage the merger of Hambleton District Council into North Yorkshire Council.

We will update the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on the outcome of our VFM planning and our planned response to any additional identified risks 
of significant weaknesses in arrangements.

P
age 59



19

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 60



20

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for the 2020/21 for the Hambleton District Council
Group accounts has been set at £660,000. This represents 1.25% of the Group’s draft
gross expenditure on provision of services for 2020/21. It will be reassessed
throughout the audit process. We base materiality on gross expenditure as users of the
financial statements will have primary interest in the activities that are performed by
the Council. We have reduced this from 2% in the prior year to 1.25% as while there is
an expectation of continued service provision, there is likely to be an increase in
interest in the group’s financial statements and an impact on the control environment
due to Local Government Reorganisation. The We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£52.9m
Planning

materiality

£660,000

Performance 
materiality

£330,000

Audit
differences

£33,000

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£330,000 which represents 50% of planning materiality. We have used a 
threshold of 50% due to the errors identified in the prior year and changes 
in the Council’s accounting staff and information systems.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement and 
collection fund over £33,000.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit, 
Governance and Standards Committee, or are important from a qualitative 
perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have set a reporting threshold of £1 for 
remuneration disclosures, related party disclosures, members’ allowances 
and exit packages which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than the level of rounding would influence the economic decisions of users 
of the financial statements in relation to this.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee confirm its 
understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 61



21

Audit materiality

Materiality

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the 
circumstances that might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant 
to users of the financial statements, including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy specific to these 
areas, including:

• Remuneration disclosures including councillor allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and councillor allowances to the agreed and approved 
amounts.

• Related party transactions we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting evidence.

Group allocation of materiality

The previous page presents our planned materiality for the Hambleton District Council group financial statements. For the purposes of group reporting, we have also
allocated materiality for each entity that is consolidated, including the single entity financial statements. These are based on the size of the entities compared to the
overall group.

Percentage of 
group materiality

Planning 
Materiality

Performance 
Materiality

Reporting 
Threshold

Hambleton District Council 98% £652,000 £326,000 £32,000

Thirsk and Sowerby Swimming Baths 20% N/A £66,093 £32,000

Central Northallerton Development Company 20% N/A £66,093 £32,000

Hambleton District Holdings Limited 20% N/A £66,093 £32,000

Hambleton Property Limited 20% N/A £66,093 £32,000

P
age 62



22

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 63



23

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice, our principal objectives are to undertake work to support the provision of our audit report to the audited body and to satisfy 
ourselves that the audited body has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by 
the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our opinion on the financial statements: 

• whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the audited body and its expenditure and income for the period in question; 
and 

• whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the relevant accounting and reporting framework as set out in legislation, 
applicable accounting standards or other direction. 

Our opinion on other matters:
• whether other information published together with the audited financial statements is consistent with the financial statements; and 
• where required, whether the part of the remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting and reporting 

framework.

Other procedures required by the Code:
• Examine and report on the consistency of the Whole of Government Accounts schedules or returns with the body’s audited financial statements for the relevant 

reporting period in line with the instructions issued by the NAO

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

As outlined in Section 03, we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on 
its use of resources and report a commentary on those arrangements. 

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 64



24

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2020/21, we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit
We will meet with Veritau, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any 
other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 65



25

Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:
1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, either because of its 

relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances (qualitative criteria). We generally assign significant 
components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from significant 
components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures. 

For all other components we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those locations. These procedures are detailed 
below.

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit 

Scoping by Entity

Our preliminary audit scopes we have adopted are set out below. We 
provide scope details for each component within Appendix A. 

Scope definitions

Full scope: components where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels 
assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit. In this case, 
the procedures performed will also support our opinion on the Council’s stand-alone 
financial statements.

Specific scope: components where the audit is limited to specific accounts or 
disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk profile of 
those accounts. For Central Northallerton Development Company, our planning 
procedures have identified the following accounts as material to the Group financial 
statements:

• Expenditure;

• Income; and

• Balance sheet items such as Property, Plant & Equipment and loans.

Review scope: components where procedures primarily consist of analytical 
procedures and inquiries of management. 

Full scope auditHambleton District Council

Specific scope
Central Northallerton 

Development Company

Review scope
Hambleton District 
Holdings Limited

Review scope
Hambleton Property 

Limited

Group audit team involvement in component audits

Auditing standards require us to be involved in the work of component teams. We will issue instructions to PwC, in their role as auditor to Central Northallerton 
Development Company, setting out the information that we require from them to support our work on the Group audit opinion.

Specific scope
Thirsk and Sowerby 

Swimming Baths

P
age 66



26

Audit team06 01

P
age 67



27

Audit team

Audit team 

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists may provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings
EY Valuations Team – Based on our risk assessment of the Council’s valuation, we may request support with the 
valuation report prepared by Align Property Services

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries – Review of pension report prepared by PwC and roll forward of pension liability

Hassan Rohimun (Partner) has responsible for the overall quality and delivery of the audit service. He will be supported by Richard Tebbs (Manager), who will be the main 
points of contact for the finance team. 

Richard will be supported by Arshley Conos (Senior) who is responsible for the execution of our fieldwork.

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 68



28

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 69



29

Audit timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Below is our anticipated timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle for 2020/21.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and we will discuss them with the 
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

JunMarFeb MayApr

Planning

Planning

Risk assessment and 
setting of scopes*

Audit Plan

Reporting our 
independence, risk 

assessment, planned audit 
approach and the scope of 

our audit

Walkthroughs

Walkthrough of key 
systems and processes*

Auditor’s Annual 
Report

The Auditor’s Annual 
Report will be provided 

following completion of our 
audit procedures

Audit Results Report

Reporting our conclusions 
on key judgements and 

estimates and confirmation 
of our independence

Field work

Fieldwork

Work begins on our audit 
fieldwork. This is when we 

will complete any 
substantive testing to form 

our audit opinion

WTs

* Where information and processes reviewed are also relevant to our audit of 2021/22 and 2022/23, we will seek to apply the results to all audits.

P
age 70



30

Independence08 01

P
age 71



31

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in December 2019, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of 
professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner and 
where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards, 
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 72



32

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we have an investment in the Council; where we receive 
significant fees in respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of 
writing, there are no long outstanding fees, limited non-audit services (relating to the Housing Benefit claim) and no business relationships. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake those permitted non-audit services set out in Section 5.40 of the FRC Ethical Standard 2019 (FRC ES), and we will 
comply with the policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. 

In addition, when the ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees exceeds 1:1, we are required to discuss this with our Ethics Partner, as set out by the FRC ES, and if necessary 
agree additional safeguards or not accept the non-audit engagement.  We will also discuss this with you. We do not provide any non-audit services which would be 
prohibited under the new standard. No additional safeguards are required.

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Hassan Rohimun, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 73



33

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2022

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, 
independence and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be 
found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2022: 
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report

P
age 74

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report


34

Appendices09 01

P
age 75



35

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2020/21

Fee 2019/20

£ £

Scale Fee – Code work 31,381 31,381

Increased Cost of Regulation 
(Note 1) 25,807 25,807

Objection (Note 2) - 13,700

Investigation work (Note 3) - 10,000 – 20,000

Prior Year Restatement of the 
EFA analysis notes (Note 4)

- 2,500 – 4,000

Group Accounts and 
consolidation  of Thirsk and 
Sowerby Swimming Baths (Note 
5)

7,500 – 10,000 7,500 – 10,000

Valuation of land and buildings 
(Note 5)

3,000 – 6,500 2,750

IAS19 Pensions (Note 5) 3,000 – 5,000 3,000 -5,000

VFM work on risks identified 
(Note 5)

7,500 – 12,000 7,500 -10,000

Other non-audit services not 
covered above (Housing 
Benefits) (Code Work) (Note 6)

25,000 15,800

Total fees 103,188 - 115,688 119,938 – 138,438

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of 
the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

1) As highlighted in the Redmond Report, local government external audit fees have not kept pace 
with regulatory change.  We believe that changes in the work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope changes associated with the risk of the organisation mean that 
the scale fee for the Council should more realistically set at a level that reflects the complexity and 
risk profile of the Council, and the resulting hours required to delivery the audit. The scale fee is set 
by PSAA Limited.  We wrote to management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
Chair setting out our considerations on the sustainability of UK local public audit. We outlined that to 
meet the cost of regulatory challenge we believe that the scale fee should be increased by £25,807. 
Management did not agree to the variations in fees which are subject to PSAA approval.

2) During our 2019/20 audit we received correspondence from a Council elector objecting to the 
accounts of the Council.

3) During our audit we identified potential concerns relating to a severance package agreed by the 
Council, investigation work was required in order to conclude on the matter.

4) Additional work was required during the 2019/20 audit to review the prior year restatement of 
the accounts

5) Additional work was required in 2019/20 and will be required during the 2020/21 audit for 
group accounts, valuation of land and buildings, IAS19 pension disclosures and VFM.

Additional fees for the above areas will be discussed with management and will be subject to PSAA 
approval or determination.  

6) Our work on the 2020/21 Housing Benefit Agreed upon Procedures is substantially complete.

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

➢ Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

➢ Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

➢ Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

➢ The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to the agreed fee. 
This will be discussed with the Council in advance. Fees for the auditor’s consideration of 
correspondence from the public and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

P
age 76



36

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material 
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on 
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of 
the engagement team 

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report
Auditor’s Annual Report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

P
age 77



37

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiries of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent 
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee to determine whether they 
have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee responsibility

Audit results report

P
age 78



38

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communication whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results 
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

P
age 79



39

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee into possible instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Management letter/audit results report

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the 
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to 
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant 
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor 
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s 
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, 
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud 
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit planning report

Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance.

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise.

Audit results report

P
age 80



40

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Auditor’s Annual Report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

Value for Money • Risks of significant weakness identified in planning work

• Commentary against specified reporting criteria on the VFM arrangements, including 
any exception report on significant weaknesses. 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

Auditor’s Annual Report

P
age 81



41

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group and Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the 
financial statements, the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by
us to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding 
and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Objective of our audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the Council’s and Group’s consolidated financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK) as prepared by you in 
accordance with with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting. 

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit are set out in the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Audit 
Committee. The audit does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of their responsibilities.

P
age 82



42

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines the level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Procedures required by the 
Audit Code 

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

• Examining and reporting on the consistency of consolidation schedules or returns with the Council’s audited financial statements 
for the relevant reporting period

Other procedures • We are required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
and Code of Audit Practice

We have included in Appendix B a list of matters that we are required to communicate to you under professional standards.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit (continued)

P
age 83



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2023 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 84


	Agenda
	3 Head of Internal Audit Opinion and Counter Fraud Update 2022/23
	Veritau HOIA opinion and Counter Fraud update 2022_23
	Annex 1 - Head of IA report Hambleton March 2023 draft to Committees 23 February 2023
	Our work is based on using a variety of audit techniques to test the operation of systems. This may include sampling and data analysis of wider populations. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion relates only to the objectives set out in the audit scope and is based on risks related to those objectives that we identify at the time of the audit. Our overall audit opinion is based on 4 grades of opinion, as set out below.
	A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
	Substantial assurance
	There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
	Reasonable assurance 
	Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and control, to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
	Limited assurance
	Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
	No assurance
	A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by management
	Priority 1
	A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be addressed by management.
	Priority 2
	The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.
	Priority 3

	Annex 2 - HDC counter fraud progress report_March 2023

	4 Annual Governance Statement 2022/23
	Annual Gov Statement 2022-23 Draft
	Contact: David Chefneux
	Interim Head of Finance
	Direct Line No: 01609 767026

	AGS Annex A 2022-23

	5 Audit Planning Report for 2020/21
	Statutory Auditor Audit Plan
	21 HDC - Audit Planning Report


